
DATE:  August 15th, 2023 
TIME:   6:00 P.M.  

JOIN ONLINE VIA ZOOM:  https://bit.ly/3xlFY9B 

Meeting ID:  976 1525 3648  
Passcode:  894903  
Dial by Location:  (253) 215 - 8782 

For inquiries and/or assistance regarding how to use the City’s online meeting format 
please email clerk@carnationwa.gov, or call (425) 333-4192. 

Mayor Jim Ribail 
Councilmember Adair Hawkins 
Acting City Clerk, Ana Cortez
Mayor and Council  

1. CALL TO ORDER:
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
3. ROLL CALL:
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
5. CONSENT AGENDA:

a) Approval of Minutes for the following date(s):
i. Special Meeting Minutes August 3rd, 2023

b) Approval of Claims in the following amount(s):
i. Already Paid: $100,777.14
ii. To be Paid: $158,045.92

c) Approval of Payroll for the following pay period(s):
i. July 1st, 2023 – July 31st, 2023 - $65,842.51

7. COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS

8. STAFF REPORTS:
a) City Manager’s Office Report & Goal Review - City

Manager Ana Cortez
b) New Website - Municipal Intern, Kati Fulton

CARNATION CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting  

Mayor Jim Ribail, Deputy Mayor Tim Harris, Ryan Burrell, Dustin Green, Adair Hawkins 

(p.3)

(p.15)

(p.16)

(p.19)

(p.26)

1

https://bit.ly/3xlFY9B


b) Budget Presentation City Manager, Ana Cortez

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION:
RCW 42.30.110 (b) To consider the selection of a site or the acquisition of real
estate by lease or purchase when public knowledge regarding such
consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price.

12. AGENDA BILLS:
a) AB23-82: Resolution - Purchase and Sale of Lords House Lot B, City of

Carnation Short Subdivision No. SHP17-00003 (4001 Tolt Ave)
b) AB23-83: Motion - Rescind a Motion for AB23-38
c) AB23-84: Ordinance: Amending CMC 10.12.030 & 10.12.031

13. DISCUSSION ITEMS:
a) Goal Setting Meeting

14. FUTURE AGENDAS:
a) Agenda for the special meeting of August 22nd, 2023
b) Tentative agenda for the meeting of September 5th, 2023
c) Tentative agenda for the meeting of September 19th, 2023

15. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Jim Ribail

9. PUBLIC COMMENT & REQUESTS: Public comment on meeting items or other 
issues of note or concern. Comments may be submitted in advance by writing or 
e-mailing clerk@carnationwa.gov, or made in person, or by telephone or 
computer connection at the time of the meeting. Individual comments shall be 
limited to three minutes. Group comments shall be limited to five minutes.

10.PRESENTATIONS:
a) King County Sheriff’s Office: Cost Allocation Model Presentation, Municipal 

Intern, Kati Fulton (p.28)

(p.40)

2

(p.45)

(p.69)

(p.71)

(p.74)

(p.75)

(p.77)

mailto:clerk@carnationwa.gov


DATE:  August 3rd, 2023 
TIME:   6:30 P.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jim Ribail 
At 6:30 P.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Deputy Mayor Harris 

3. ROLL CALL: City Clerk Lora Wilmes 
Present: Councilmember Hawkins, Councilmember Green, Mayor Ribail, Deputy 
Mayor Harris, Councilmember Burrell 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor and Council

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER HAWKINS SECOND BY DEPUTY MAYOR
HARRIS TO APPROVE THE AGENDA.

MOTION BY DEPUTY MAYOR HARRIS SECOND BY COUNCILMEMBER
GREEN TO:

• STRIKE THE PUBLIC HEARING FROM THE AGENDA
• TABLE AB23-78
• ADD AB23-82: RESCHEDULING A PUBLIC HEARING
• MOVE EXECUTIVE SESSION TO THE END OF THE MEETING AFTER

AGENDA BILLS.
• ADD A PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD IN LIEU OF A PUBLIC HEARING

NO VOTE TOOK PLACE. DEPUTY MAYOR HARRIS SEPERATED THE 
MOTION INTO TWO DIFFERENT MOTIONS. 

MOTION BY DEPUTY MAYOR HARRIS SECOND BY COUNCILMEMBER 
HAWKINS TO: 

• STRIKE THE PUBLIC HEARING FROM THE AGENDA

CARNATION CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Special Meeting  

Mayor Jim Ribail, Deputy Mayor Tim Harris, Ryan Burrell, Dustin Green, Adair Hawkins 

3



• TABLE AB23-78
• ADD AB23-82: RESCHEDULING A PUBLIC HEARING
• ADD A PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD IN LIEU OF A PUBLIC HEARING

MOTION PASSED (4-1). COUNCILMEMBER HAWKINS OPPOSED. 

MOTION BY DEPUTY MAYOR HARRIS SECOND BY COUNCILMEMBER 
BURRELL TO MOVE THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. MOTION FAILED (2-3). 
MAYOR RIBAIL AND DEPUTY MAYOR HARRIS IN FAVOR. 
COUNCILMEMBER GREEN, COUNCILMEMBER HAWKINS, AND 
COUNCILMEMBER BURRELL OPPOSED. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA:
a) Approval of Minutes for the following date(s):

i. Regular Session: July 18th, 2023
ii. Special Session: July 21st, 2023

b) Approval of Claims in the following amount(s):
i. Already Paid: $126,685.37
ii. To be Paid: $343,076.84

NO MOTION OR SECOND TOOK PLACE. VOTE TO APPROVE THE AGENDA 
PASSED (5-0). 

6. PUBLIC HEARING:
The Carnation City Council will hold a public hearing to receive and consider
public comment regarding a potential Development Agreement pursuant to
RCW 36.70B.200. The hearing is open to the public. All interested persons are
encouraged to listen and/or attend the public hearing and to provide oral and/or
written comments. Oral comment will be limited to 3 minutes per person.

*Public Hearing was stricken from the Agenda by the Council.

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
• Victoria Kleis provided comment.
• Ryan McClure provided comment.
• Nancy Gass provided comment.
• Sarah Clarke provided comment.
• Jenn Dean provided comment.
• Patrick Willis provided comment
• Jules Hughes provided comment.
• Shirley Doolittle Egerdahl provided comment.
• David Remlinger provided comment.
• Karen Fletcher provided comment.
• Sarah Norsby provided comment.

4

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70B.200


7. EXECUTIVE SESSION:
RCW 42.30.110 (b) To consider the selection of a site or the acquisition of real
estate by lease or purchase when public knowledge regarding such
consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price.

The Council entered into Executive Session at 7:38 P.M. Mayor Ribail set the
return to Regular Session time to 8:15 P.M.

At 8:11 P.M., Mayor Ribail extended the Executive Session to 8:25 P.M.

The Council returned to Regular Session at 8:25 P.M.

8. AGENDA BILLS:
a) AB23-77: Resolution - Recommendation of Award Letter and accepting the

Bid from Sea Con, LLC for Carnation Community Center/Emergency
Operations

MOTION BY DEPUTY MAYOR HARRIS SECOND BY COUNCILMEMBER
BURRELL. MOTION FAILED (0-5).

b) AB23-78: Resolution - Accepting Development Agreement and Purchase
Sale Agreement with The Remlinger Group
*This bill was tabled by the Council.

c) AB23-79: Resolution – Accepting the Purchase Sale Agreement for King
County Parcel No. 8657300145

MOTION BY DEPUTY MAYOR HARRIS SECOND BY COUNCILMEMBER
GREEN. MOTION PASSED (5-0).

d) AB23-80: Motion - Rescind a Motion for AB23-40

MOTION BY DEPUTY MAYOR HARRIS SECOND BY COUNCILMEMBER
BURRELL. MOTION PASSED (5-0).

e) AB23-81: Ordinance: Amending CMC Section 13.25.030

MOTION BY DEPUTY MAYOR HARRIS SECOND BY COUNCILMEMBER
BURRELL MOTION PASSED (5-0).

AB23-82: Motion: Schedule Public Hearing for potential development
agreement with the Remlinger Group

5



MOTION BY DEPUTY MAYOR HARRIS SECOND BY MAYOR RIBAIL. 
MOTION PASSED (5-0). 

9. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Jim Ribail

Approved at the regular meeting of the Carnation City Council on August 15th, 
2023.  

_____________________________________________________ 
MAYOR JIM RIBAIL  

_____________________________________________________ 
CITY CLERK LORA WILMES  

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAID
City of Carnation Time: 12:45:03 Date: 08/10/2023

08/03/2023 To: 08/09/2023 Page: 1
Accts
Pay # Paid On Year Trans Vendor ID Vendor Amount Memo

1373 08/04/2023 2023 1750 1198 FIRST AMERICAN TITLE 50,000.00 3900 Tolt Ave Earnest
1406 08/09/2023 2023 1786 1204 HUGHES, JOE 212.14 Reissuing a utility refund check
1404 08/08/2023 2023 1778 1203 RINEHART, INSPECTION SERVICES 565.00 Lords House Inspection
1388 08/07/2023 2023 1768 1201 TICOR TITLE 50,000.00 LORDS HOUSE ESCROW

Total: 100,777.14

This report has been reviewed by:
         _________________________________  ___________________

REMARKS:                                                    Signature  & Title      Date 

15

8/10/2022



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City of Carnation Time: 12:53:48 Date: 08/10/2023

As Of: 08/15/2023 Page: 1
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

1391 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 529 AM TEST, INC 25.00 WATER TREATMENT / NITRATE + NITRITE NITROGEN. 
SAMPLE NUMBER 23-A0012481

1392 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 529 AM TEST, INC 25.00 NITRATE+NITRITE NITROGEN. WATER TEST.              
SAMPLE NUMBER: 23-A0012479

1377 08/07/2023 08/07/2023 598 CITY OF CARNATION 141.03 WATER BILL SERVICE ON 5110 CARNATION DUVALL 
RD NE. FOR JULY

1378 08/07/2023 08/07/2023 598 CITY OF CARNATION 559.08 WATER BILL SERVICE ON 32401 E ENTWISTLE ST FOR 
JULY

1379 08/07/2023 08/07/2023 598 CITY OF CARNATION 1,196.72 WATER BILL SERVICE ON 31999 E BIRD ST FOR JULY
1380 08/07/2023 08/07/2023 598 CITY OF CARNATION 628.08 WATER BILL SERVICE ON 31000 E BLANCHE ST 

(MEMORIAL PARK) FOR JULY
1381 08/07/2023 08/07/2023 598 CITY OF CARNATION 732.09 WATER BILL SERVICE ON 4621  TOLT AVE ( CITY HALL)

FOR JULY
1382 08/07/2023 08/07/2023 598 CITY OF CARNATION 127.08 WATER BILL SERVICE ON 4620 TOLT AVE (TOLT 

COMMONS ) FOR JULY
1383 08/07/2023 08/07/2023 598 CITY OF CARNATION 780.20 WATER BILL SERVICE ON 4301 LARSON AVE ( VAC. 

STATION) FOR JULY
1386 08/07/2023 08/07/2023 598 CITY OF CARNATION 127.08 WATER BILL SERVICE ON 4602 STOSSEL AVE ( 

HOCKERT PARK) FOR JULY
1367 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 691 JOHN DAY HOMES INC 19.32 SEWER / UTILITY REFUND
1374 08/04/2023 08/04/2023 720 KPG PSOMAS 2,465.03 TOLT AVE/ CBD. PROFESIONAL SERVICES FROM JUNE 

30- JULY 31-2023
1375 08/04/2023 08/04/2023 720 KPG PSOMAS 8,370.62 TOLT AVE/ CBD. PROFESIONAL SERVICES FROM 

FEBRUARY 3- TO MARCH 2-2023
1393 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 740 LINDER ELECTRIC, INC 355.72 DISCONECT POWER TO THE CITY PARK COMMUNITY 

SPACE AND MAKE SAFE. MATERIAL AND LABOR
1369 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 804 PUGET SOUND ENERGY 6.10 BILLING INITIATION CHARGE AMOUNT FOR POWER  

NEW BOOSTER PUMP AT THE SHOP
1396 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 804 PUGET SOUND ENERGY 1,474.97 ENERGY BILL SERVICE ON E. ESUGENE ST & TOLT AVE

- ST LIGHTS #
1397 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 804 PUGET SOUND ENERGY 638.05 ENERGY BILL SERVICE ON 33100 NE 45TH ST / PUBLIC

WORKS SHOP
1399 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 836 SAFEBUILT, LLC 455.00 COST RECOVERY)  CONSULTANT BUILDING 

SERVICES/ DAVID SPENCER JULY 5, 11, 13. 2023
1400 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 836 SAFEBUILT, LLC 1,274.00 (COST RECOVERY) INSPECTION DAVID SPENCER AND

AMBER DOWLING.
1401 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 836 SAFEBUILT, LLC 5,043.75 (COST RECOVERY) PLAN REVIEW - 32164 E REITZE ST-

LOT 50- LOT 51- 3600 TOLT AVENUE- 32315 EAST 
REITZE STREET.

1385 08/07/2023 08/07/2023 858 SHARP ELECTRONIC CORP ~ USAGE 1,464.02 COPY MACHIE SERVICE. COPIES MADE/ BILLLABLE 
COPIES. B/W AND COLOR 16



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City of Carnation Time: 12:53:48 Date: 08/10/2023

As Of: 08/15/2023 Page: 2
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

1394 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 893 UNITED SITE SERVICES 172.16 SEWER LOCATION. SERVICE EVERY 2 WEEKS HAND 
SANI. REFILL

1395 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 893 UNITED SITE SERVICES 488.46 MEMORIAL PARK- SERVICE 2 DAYS A WEEK. HAND 
SANI. REFILL

1362 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 898 UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION CENTER 69.66 EXCAVATION NOTIFICATIONS FOR THE MONTH: 54
1366 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 940 THOMPSON, GUILDNER & ASSOCIATES INC P.S. 938.60 GENERAL COUNSEL
1376 08/04/2023 08/04/2023 1011 FUSIONTEK 4,904.67 AUGUST 1, FULL SERVICE/ ACTIVE 

DIRECTORY/CYBERSECURITY PACKAGE/AZURE 
COMPUTER&STORAGE CONSUMPTION/

1390 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 1011 FUSIONTEK 4,934.47 FULL SERVICE 07/01/23 - 07/31/23. AZURE ACTIVE 
DIRECTORY PREMIUM- ADVANCED CYBERSECURITY 
PACKAGE- AZURE COMPUTE & STORAGE 
CONSUMPTION. 07/01/-07/31/2023

1402 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 1011 FUSIONTEK 4,527.36 FULL SERVICE FOR APRIL, 1, 2023 - APRIL,31,2023
1403 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 1011 FUSIONTEK 277.50 EMAIL SEARCH 05/17/2023
1405 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 1011 FUSIONTEK 1,058.99 AZURE COMPUTE & STORAGE CONSUMPTION FOR 

APRIL
1368 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 1023 KING COUNTY RADIO COMMUNICATION SERVICES 135.33 RADIO COMMUNICATION SERVICES. MONTHLY 

7/12023-7/31/2023
1364 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 1043 BENJAMIN ASPHALT, INC 3,000.12 TIMBERFEST TRAFFIC CONTROL
1370 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 1044 STRATUM GROUP INC 3,375.00 (COST RECOVERY) 2ND QUARTER 2023. EOC
1371 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 1044 STRATUM GROUP INC 540.00 (COST RECOVERY) MACKENLY
1384 08/07/2023 08/07/2023 1093 HARGROVE, JENNIFER 840.00 MAY, JUNE, JULY. CONTENT CREATION, PROOFING, 

RESEARCH AND MEETINGS. 21. HRS
1398 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 1159 GBC CONSTRUCTION,INC 24,625.99 TRACKHOE WITH MOWER & OPERATOR JULY 13, 14, 

17, 21, 24, 25, 26,27, 28/2023 AND MOVE IN/ MOVE 
OUT SOLO TRUVK EQUIPMENT TRAILER

1360 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 1161 EASTSIDE TREE WORKS, LLC 6,902.45 2 HAZARD TREES CUT DOWN. TREE OVER BASKET 
BALL COURT.

1361 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 1161 EASTSIDE TREE WORKS, LLC 3,424.05 TREES ON BAGWELL STRET TRIMMED/REMOVAL
1372 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 1167 DATABAR 1,598.34 UTILITY BILL SERVICE / POSTAGE
1359 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 1195 FEDEX 152.38 SEWER- MAINTENANCE PARTS ORDERED FROM 

CANADA.
1363 08/03/2023 08/03/2023 1196 POSTMASTER 244.00 POST OFFICE  BOX SERVICE ANNUAL SERVICE FEE.
1389 08/08/2023 08/08/2023 1202 RWS CONSTRUCTION LLC 69,928.45 SIDEWALK AT THE CHURCH. THE CHURCH WILL BE 

PAYING US FOR A BIT OVER 16K FOR THEIR PORTION
OF THE WORK.

Report Total: 158,045.92

17



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City of Carnation Time: 12:53:48 Date: 08/10/2023

As Of: 08/15/2023 Page: 3
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

This report has been reviewed by:
         _________________________________  ___________________

REMARKS:                                                    Signature  & Title      Date 

18

8/10/2022



PAYROLL CERTIFICATION 

PERIOD: JULY 1 – JULY 31, 2023 

I, Ashlyn Farnworth, Assistant to the City Manager for the City of Carnation, do hereby 
attest that payroll deposits for the period above have been made through Paycom. I 
have worked with Paycom to reflect accurate information to the best of my ability. Any 
payroll adjustments made outside the normal monthly payroll period are indicated 
below.  

Total Amount: $65,842.51 

Adjustments: NONE  

Ashlyn Farnworth 
Assistant to the City Manager 

19



Employee Earnings Rate Hours/Units Amount Taxes Deductions Net Pay

001 - General Fund
BHULLAR, SEERUT

Code: A00X
1099 Employee

Regular 30.00 34.00 1,020.00
GROSS 1,020.00

Direct Deposit Net Check 1,020.00
NET PAY 1,020.00

BURRELL, RYAN
Code: A002
Tax Profile: 2 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 3.46 168.00 581.54
GROSS 581.54

Federal W/H (M) 170.00
Medicare 8.43
Social Security 36.05
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
50.27

Washington EE
Medical Leave

1.04

Washington EE Family
Leave

2.35

Washington State
Cares

3.37

Direct Deposit Net Check 310.03
NET PAY 310.03

CORTEZ, ANA
Code: A003
Tax Profile: 2 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 75.77 160.00 12,122.59
Holiday 75.77 8.00 606.13
1099 Pay 1,000.00
Extra Pay 980.00

GROSS 14,708.72

Federal W/H (M) 1,810.40
Medicare 204.59
Social Security 874.81
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
47.87

Washington EE
Medical Leave

26.90

Washington EE Family
Leave

60.93

Washington State
Cares

87.52

EE Deferred
Compensation $

980.00

DRS EE Plan 3 2,206.31
DRS ER Plan 3 -

Match
1,381.15

ER Dental 109.28
ER Life 18.75
ER Medical 1,751.40
ER Vision 19.06

Direct Deposit Net Check 7,409.39
Direct Dep. Distribution 1 800.00
Direct Dep. Distribution 2 200.00

NET PAY 8,409.39

DEHAVEN, NICK
Code: A00M
1099 Employee

Regular 30.00 17.58 527.40
GROSS 527.40

Direct Deposit Net Check 527.40
NET PAY 527.40

ENDER, RHONDA
Code: A00J
Tax Profile: 2 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 52.88 160.00 8,461.54
Holiday 52.88 8.00 423.08

GROSS 8,884.62

Federal W/H (H) 1,019.61
Medicare 139.65
Social Security 597.12
Washington EE

Medical Leave
17.32

Washington EE Family
Leave

39.24

Washington State
Cares

56.37

DRS EE Plan 2 565.06
EE Deferred

Compensation %
87.97

DRS ER Plan 2 -
Match

834.27

ER Dental 109.28
ER Life 18.75
ER Medical 1,305.22
ER Vision 19.06

Direct Deposit Net Check 6,362.28
NET PAY 6,362.28

FARNWORTH, ASHLYN
Code: A004
Tax Profile: 1 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 30.77 160.00 4,923.07
Holiday 30.77 8.00 246.15

GROSS 5,169.22

Federal W/H (H) 649.94
Medicare 75.66
Social Security 323.50
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
47.87

Washington EE 9.30

DRS EE Plan 3 258.46
DRS ER Plan 3 -

Match
48.54

ER Dental 57.78
ER Life 18.75
ER Medical 872.06

Direct Deposit Net Check 3,753.16
NET PAY 3,753.16

CITY OF CARNATION
Client: 0AZ57 Check Register Report

Sorted on Department Code
Period Ending: 07/31/2023

Check Date: 08/07/2023
Transaction: E4947E984

Generated: (8/3/2023 2:21 PM) Page: 1 of 6
20



Employee Earnings Rate Hours/Units Amount Taxes Deductions Net Pay
Medical Leave

Washington EE Family
Leave

21.07

Washington State
Cares

30.26

ER Vision 9.54

FULTON, KATI
Code: A00V
Tax Profile: 1 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 20.00 115.18 2,303.60
GROSS 2,303.60

Federal W/H (S) 119.60
Medicare 33.41
Social Security 142.82
Washington EE

Medical Leave
4.11

Washington EE Family
Leave

9.30

Washington State
Cares

13.36

Direct Deposit Net Check 1,981.00
NET PAY 1,981.00

GARCIA JIMENEZ, BIBI
Code: A00K
Tax Profile: 2 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 26.08 124.80 3,254.78
Overtime 39.12 4.00 156.48
Holiday 26.08 8.00 208.64
Sick 26.08 8.00 208.64

GROSS 3,828.54

Federal W/H (H) 58.59
Medicare 60.73
Social Security 259.66
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
38.54

Washington EE
Medical Leave

7.47

Washington EE Family
Leave

16.91

Washington State
Cares

24.29

DRS EE Plan 2 243.50
DRS ER Plan 2 -

Match
359.50

ER Dental 120.50
ER Life 18.75
ER Medical 1,567.60
ER Vision 17.10
ER Dental DP 2.20
ER Medical DP 18.00
ER Vision DP 0.20

Direct Deposit Net Check 3,118.85
NET PAY 3,118.85

GARCIA, GUSTAVO
Code: A00U
Tax Profile: 1 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 34.69 160.00 5,550.40
Overtime 52.04 26.00 1,352.91
Holiday 34.69 8.00 277.52
Extra Pay 50.00
On Call 2.67 308.00 822.36

GROSS 8,053.19

Federal W/H (M) 652.72
Medicare 127.74
Social Security 546.18
Washington EE

Medical Leave
15.70

Washington EE Family
Leave

35.57

Washington State
Cares

51.10

DRS EE Plan 2 512.18
Union Amount 78.05
DRS ER Plan 2 -

Match
756.19

ER Dental 120.50
ER Life 18.75
ER Medical 1,567.60
ER Vision 17.10
ER Dental DP 2.20
ER Medical DP 18.00
ER Vision DP 0.20

Direct Deposit Net Check 6,033.95
NET PAY 6,033.95

GREEN, DUSTIN
Code: A005
Tax Profile: 2 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 3.46 168.00 581.54
GROSS 581.54

Medicare 8.43
Social Security 36.06
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
50.27

Washington EE
Medical Leave

1.04

Washington EE Family
Leave

2.35

Washington State 3.37

Direct Deposit Net Check 480.02
NET PAY 480.02

CITY OF CARNATION
Client: 0AZ57 Check Register Report

Sorted on Department Code
Period Ending: 07/31/2023

Check Date: 08/07/2023
Transaction: E4947E984

Generated: (8/3/2023 2:21 PM) Page: 2 of 6
21



Employee Earnings Rate Hours/Units Amount Taxes Deductions Net Pay
Cares

HARRIS, TIM
Code: A006
Tax Profile: 2 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 4.04 168.00 678.46
GROSS 678.46

Federal W/H (M) 568.39
Medicare 9.84
Social Security 42.07
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
50.27

Washington EE
Medical Leave

1.21

Washington EE Family
Leave

2.74

Washington State
Cares

3.94

Direct Deposit Net Check 0.00
NET PAY Zero Net

HAWKINS, ADAIR
Code: A007
Tax Profile: 2 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 3.46 168.00 581.54
GROSS 581.54

Medicare 8.43
Social Security 36.05
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
50.27

Washington EE
Medical Leave

1.04

Washington EE Family
Leave

2.35

Washington State
Cares

3.37

Direct Deposit Net Check 480.03
NET PAY 480.03

INSINGER, ERIK
Code: A00O
Tax Profile: 1 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 38.01 160.00 6,082.38
Holiday 38.01 8.00 304.12
Vacation 38.01 27.63 1,050.35
Extra Pay 50.00

GROSS 7,486.85

Federal W/H (M) 584.76
Medicare 118.75
Social Security 507.77
Washington EE

Medical Leave
14.60

Washington EE Family
Leave

33.07

Washington State
Cares

47.50

DRS EE Plan 2 476.16
DRS ER Plan 2 -

Match
703.02

ER Dental 109.28
ER Life 18.75
ER Medical 1,751.40
ER Vision 19.06

Direct Deposit Net Check 5,704.24
NET PAY 5,704.24

KNIGHT, EMMA
Code: A00R
Tax Profile: 1 - FL/WA/WA

Regular 30.00 33.80 1,014.00
GROSS 1,014.00

Medicare 14.70
Social Security 62.87
Washington EE

Medical Leave
1.81

Washington EE Family
Leave

4.09

Washington State
Cares

5.88

Direct Deposit Net Check 924.65
NET PAY 924.65

MULLHOLLAND, HEATHER
Code: A00Q
Tax Profile: 1 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 30.51 138.43 4,223.50
Holiday 30.51 8.00 244.08

GROSS 4,467.58

Federal W/H (H) 29.74
Medicare 70.86
Social Security 303.00
Washington EE

Medical Leave
8.71

DRS EE Plan 3 223.38
DRS ER Plan 3 -

Match
419.51

ER Dental 120.50
ER Life 18.75

Direct Deposit Net Check 3,783.82
NET PAY 3,783.82

CITY OF CARNATION
Client: 0AZ57 Check Register Report

Sorted on Department Code
Period Ending: 07/31/2023

Check Date: 08/07/2023
Transaction: E4947E984

Generated: (8/3/2023 2:21 PM) Page: 3 of 6
22



Employee Earnings Rate Hours/Units Amount Taxes Deductions Net Pay
Washington EE Family

Leave
19.73

Washington State
Cares

28.34

ER Medical 1,567.60
ER Vision 17.10
ER Dental DP 2.20
ER Medical DP 18.00
ER Vision DP 0.20

PARADIS, LARRY
Code: A00S
Tax Profile: 1 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 32.00 163.31 5,225.92
GROSS 5,225.92

Federal W/H (M) 313.44
Medicare 75.77
Social Security 324.01
Washington EE

Medical Leave
9.31

Washington EE Family
Leave

21.10

Washington State
Cares

30.31

Direct Deposit Net Check 4,451.98
NET PAY 4,451.98

RIBAIL, JIM
Code: A00B
Tax Profile: 2 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 4.62 168.00 775.38
GROSS 775.38

Federal W/H (M) 200.00
Medicare 11.24
Social Security 48.08
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
50.27

Washington EE
Medical Leave

1.38

Washington EE Family
Leave

3.13

Washington State
Cares

4.50

Direct Deposit Net Check 456.78
NET PAY 456.78

SCHELL, BRANDON
Code: A00H
Tax Profile: 2 - TX/WA/WA

Regular 55.29 160.00 8,846.15
Floating 55.29 8.00 442.31
Holiday 55.29 8.00 442.31
Management

Leave
55.29 6.00 331.73

GROSS 10,062.50

Federal W/H (M) 784.06
Medicare 146.35
Social Security 625.74
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
49.67

Washington EE
Medical Leave

19.62

Washington EE Family
Leave

44.45

Washington State
Cares

63.84

DRS EE Plan 2 639.98
EE Deferred

Compensation %
914.77

DRS ER Plan 2 -
Match

944.87

ER Dental 109.28
ER Life 18.75
ER Medical 1,751.40
ER Vision 19.06

Direct Deposit Net Check 6,774.02
NET PAY 6,774.02

TIPTON, MIKE
Code: A00F
Tax Profile: 2 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 42.76 160.00 6,841.85
Holiday 42.76 8.00 342.09

GROSS 7,183.94

Federal W/H (M) 823.41
Medicare 113.95
Social Security 487.23
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
47.87

Washington EE
Medical Leave

14.01

Washington EE Family
Leave

31.73

DRS EE Plan 2 456.90
DRS ER Plan 2 -

Match
674.57

ER Dental 109.28
ER Life 18.75
ER Medical 1,751.40
ER Vision 19.06

Direct Deposit Net Check 5,208.84
NET PAY 5,208.84

CITY OF CARNATION
Client: 0AZ57 Check Register Report

Sorted on Department Code
Period Ending: 07/31/2023

Check Date: 08/07/2023
Transaction: E4947E984

Generated: (8/3/2023 2:21 PM) Page: 4 of 6
23



Employee Earnings Rate Hours/Units Amount Taxes Deductions Net Pay
WILMES, LORA

Code: A00D
Tax Profile: 2 - WA/WA/WA

Regular 48.08 160.00 7,692.30
Holiday 48.08 8.00 384.62

GROSS 8,076.92

Federal W/H (M) 784.56
Medicare 128.11
Social Security 547.79
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
47.87

Washington EE
Medical Leave

15.75

Washington EE Family
Leave

35.68

Washington State
Cares

51.24

DRS EE Plan 3 403.85
DRS ER Plan 3 -

Match
758.42

ER Dental 171.06
ER Life 18.75
ER Medical 2,184.58
ER Vision 28.58

Direct Deposit Net Check 6,062.07
NET PAY 6,062.07

Subtotals for Dept: 001 Regular 2,747.10 81,287.94
Overtime 30.00 1,509.39
Floating 8.00 442.31
Holiday 80.00 3,478.74
Management

Leave
6.00 331.73

Sick 8.00 208.64
Vacation 27.63 1,050.35
1099 Pay 1,000.00
Extra Pay 1,080.00
On Call 308.00 822.36

GROSS 3,214.73 91,211.46

Federal W/H 8,569.22
Medicare 1,356.64
Social Security 5,800.81
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
531.04

Washington EE
Medical Leave

170.32

Washington EE Family
Leave

385.79

Washington State
Cares

508.56

DRS EE Plan 2 2,893.78
DRS EE Plan 3 3,092.00
DRS ER Plan 2 -

Match
4,272.42

DRS ER Plan 3 -
Match

2,607.62

EE Deferred
Compensation $

980.00

EE Deferred
Compensation %

1,002.74

ER Dental 1,136.74
ER Dental DP 6.60
ER Life 187.50
ER Medical 16,070.26
ER Medical DP 54.00
ER Vision 184.72
ER Vision DP 0.60
Union Amount 78.05

20 DD Vouchers 64,842.51
2 DD Distributions 1,000.00

NET PAY 65,842.51

Total Company
Company Totals Regular 2,747.10 81,287.94

Overtime 30.00 1,509.39
Floating 8.00 442.31
Holiday 80.00 3,478.74
Management

Leave
6.00 331.73

Sick 8.00 208.64
Vacation 27.63 1,050.35
1099 Pay 1,000.00
Extra Pay 1,080.00
On Call 308.00 822.36

GROSS 3,214.73 91,211.46

Federal W/H 8,569.22
Medicare 1,356.64
Social Security 5,800.81
WA EE 0803-00 Cities

& Towns All O
531.04

Washington EE
Medical Leave

170.32

Washington EE Family
Leave

385.79

Washington State
Cares

508.56

DRS EE Plan 2 2,893.78
DRS EE Plan 3 3,092.00
DRS ER Plan 2 -

Match
4,272.42

DRS ER Plan 3 -
Match

2,607.62

EE Deferred
Compensation $

980.00

EE Deferred
Compensation %

1,002.74

ER Dental 1,136.74
ER Dental DP 6.60
ER Life 187.50
ER Medical 16,070.26
ER Medical DP 54.00

20 DD Vouchers 64,842.51
2 DD Distributions 1,000.00

NET PAY 65,842.51

CITY OF CARNATION
Client: 0AZ57 Check Register Report

Sorted on Department Code
Period Ending: 07/31/2023

Check Date: 08/07/2023
Transaction: E4947E984

Generated: (8/3/2023 2:21 PM) Page: 5 of 6
24



Employee Earnings Rate Hours/Units Amount Taxes Deductions Net Pay
ER Vision 184.72
ER Vision DP 0.60
Union Amount 78.05

Total Net Pay 65,842.51

CITY OF CARNATION
Client: 0AZ57 Check Register Report

Sorted on Department Code
Period Ending: 07/31/2023

Check Date: 08/07/2023
Transaction: E4947E984

Generated: (8/3/2023 2:21 PM) Page: 6 of 6
25



AUGUST 15, 2023 

TO: CARNATION CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: ANA CORTEZ,  
CITY MANAGER 

RE: GOAL REVIEW 

The City Manager respectfully presents an update on the priorities and goals set by the City Council in 
January 2023.  One of the most important outcomes from the City Council’s annual retreat was the 
development of twelve goals that guide deliverables from the City Manager’s Office.   

These goals reflect desired impacts and outcomes that the Council wishes to see in the City of Carnation. 
This list also reflects the multiyear nature of complex projects needed to achieve the overall vision of 
the City of Carnation.    

This list defines and focuses staff’s work and production.  This list is not intended to limit staff nor to cap 
delivery of basic services such as utilities, permitting and licensing.  Implicitly, City staff will have its own 
set of goals set by the City Manager and the Management Team.  Supervisor will monitor goal 
achievement of staff.  The City Council monitors progress made on these goals by the City Manager.  

The attached table lists goals, milestones, rate of completion and expected end dates.  This table will be 
updated and presented to the Council no less than twicer per year.  This table shall also be used during 
the evaluation of the City Manager.  

The City Manager wishes to engage the City Council on a discussion to determine if new goals need to 
be added to this list while others need to be postponed for the next biennial.   It is important to 
understand that it is the Council’s prerogative to modify these goals and in doing so, adjusting timelines 
for milestones and end dates.  

The City Manager seeks clarification on the level of urgency on activities pertaining to SR203.  The City 
Manager understands that residents are concerned with safety at Tolt Hill Rd and 203, Tolt Hill Rd and 
202 and that the Council is concerned with traffic impacts from the completion of Mainvue.  Effective 
address of these problems requires collaboration by State and County partners.  Furthermore, solutions 
in these areas will be expensive and likely qualify for Federal funding.  This subgoal under the 
implementation of the City’s economic development strategy is easily the most complex of all the 
activities set forth by Council.  For this reason, 2026-2030 has been set as the target completion date.  

Does the Council wish to shorten the timeline to address safety concerns with 203? Should this task 
move up in priority? Should additional resources be allocated to this goal? 

26



What? Status? Expected Completion Impact
Finish Phase II- Tolt Sidewalk 100% 9.2023 Mobility

ADA ramps 50% 12.203 Accessability
EOC Release bid 100% done Safety

Break Ground 1% TBD Accessibility

New concept 50% TBD Safety
Lord's 80% 10.1.2023 Office space
Containers 50% 10.1.2023 Community Space
Miracle 90% 9.1.2023 Control

Economic Development Annexation - South 5% 5.1.2024 Assets
Annexation- North 25% 5.1.2024 Assets
Schefer 90% 2026 Benefits
Microbusiness 25% 6.1.2024 Benefits
Uses on 203 30% 2026-2030 Safety
Land acquis/dev 50% 2024 Safety
Annexation Document 50% 12.2023 Policy framework

Transportation Loops Redmond Loop 10% 2024 Access
Bellevue Loop 10% 2024 Access
Mercer Island Loop 10% 2024 Access
Issaquah Loop 10% 2024 Access

Comprehensive Plan Update Utilities 80% 2024 Policy framework
Housing 80% 2024 Policy framework
Land use 70% 2024 Policy framework
Parks 80% 2024 Policy framework

Franchise Comcast 75% 12.2023 Benefits
Recology NA

Master Plan for South West Land use 80% 3.2024 Policy framework
Traffic/Roads 80% 3.2024 Policy framework
Community Engagement 5% 3.2024 Policy framework
Recreation 5% 3.2024 Policy framework
Environmental Resilience 5% 3.2024 Policy framework

Utilities Asset Inventory Water 25% 6.2024 Asset protection
Sewer 25% 6.2024 Asset protection
Stormwater 25% 6.2024 Asset protection
Roads 25% 6.2024 Asset protection

Strategic Partnerships Creative Economies 90% on-going Mutual support
Snoqualmie Tribe 90% on-going Mutual support
King County Parks 90% on-going Mutual support
King County Roads 90% on-going Mutual support
WADOT 90% on-going Mutual support
King County Local 90% on-going Mutual support
Remlinger 90% on-going Mutual support
Carnation Chamber 90% on-going Mutual support
Snoqualmie Chamber 90% on-going Mutual support
Port 90% on-going Mutual support
Sr. Center 90% on-going Mutual support
Empower Youth 90% on-going Mutual support

Code Enforcement Tolt Ave 50% on-going Economic vitality
West 25% on-going Economic vitality
East 25% on-going Economic vitality

Foudation Document Updates Council Rules Update 5% 12.2023 Policy consistency
Personnel Manual Update 5% 12.2023 Policy consistency
New Bank 5% 12.2023 Improved services

CITY COUNCIL GOALS - CITY MANAGER'S PRIORITIES FOR FY 2023 AND FY 2024

27



COST MODEL
REVIEW FOR
CONTRACT
CITIES
Summary of MGT Consulting's Report on
King County Sherrif's Office 
Final Report May 31, 2023

28



EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY
Carnation is a Contract City for King
County Sheriff's Office (KCSO) that utilizes
the Shared Supervision Model.

BACKGROUND

PROJECT OBJECTIVES

King County partnered with MGT to
conduct and provide a detailed
assessment of the KCSO practices for
allocating costs to its 16 Contract Entities.

29



SUMMARY OF
FINDINGS

Contract Cities acknowledge the benefits of having a
relationship with KC.
Generally, Contract Cities are pleased with KCSO services
but are concerned with recent cost increases and
vacancies of sworn personnel.
Primary driver of cost increases was the multi-year
Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) and the recent
increase in risk management.
KCSO Contract has a significant impact on local budgets.
Current Cost Model reflects the ILA but is too complicated.
Contract Cities seek transparency and simplification of the
Cost Model.

MGT met with County and Contract City Representatives,
reviewing the Interlocal Agreement (ILA) and the Contract
Cities Cost Model.
MGT Findings:

30



SUMMARY OF MGT
RECOMMENDATIONS

KCSO should adopt an Enterprise Fund Model for
budgeting and reporting of costs associated with services
provided to all 16 Contract Entities in compliance with the
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The new Model will increase transparency in reporting and
simplify the accounting and preparation costs associated
with the current Model.

Enterprise fund will assist parties in development of
multi-year financial plans.
Recommends monthly and annual reporting of planned
vs. actual expenses.
Improves the sharing of information.

MGT provides supporting analyses for these recommendations
within the detailed Cost Model Review for Contract Cities
Report for King County.
MGT Recommendations:

31



KCSO should post all reports on a shared website so
that every Contract Entity can access said reports -
improving transparency and customer relations.
KCSO should estimate the Reconciliation Credits for
the prior year and reduce the amount in estimate for
Proposed Exhibit B, basing the estimates on
Reconciliation Credits from the past 2-3 years of
Adjustments.
KCSO should request the County's HR department
designate an analyst to expedite the updates to
PeopleSoft system.

MGT recommendations to current Policies and Procedures
in addressing issues of transparency and allocation of
Costs to Contract City's.
Changes to Current Policies:

SUMMARY OF MGT
RECOMMENDATIONS
CONTINUED

32



Cost of Dedicated Personnel
Additional Police Services
Overhead

Exhibit B Ex:
KCSO document, established by
the ILA which identify the costs
charged to each Contract City. 
 Separate Exhibit Bs are
prepared for each city twice
annually (Proposed and
Adopted), outlining the
following:

33



Remove services KCSO no longer offers due to budgeting.
Clarify types of arrangements that Contract Cities can
select.
Provide for the preparation of one Exhibit B for each
Contract City 3 months before the start of the Fiscal
Calendar Year.
Reflect the recognition of historical reconciliation
adjustments in Exhibit B to reduce the size of Post-Year
Adjustments.
Authorize KCSO to develop materials that better explain the
operation of the ILA and Cost Model. (Visual displays, Excel,
Flow Charts, Videos)
KCSO should develop a Succession Plan to ensure smooth
transition of responsibilities.
KCSO and Contract Cities should develop protocols for use
of non-sworn personnel for activities where sworn
personnel are not necessary (Parades, School Traffic)

MGT Recommendations for County and Contract Cities to revise
the Interlocal Agreement (ILA):

MGT REVISIONS TO THE ILA

34



Primary driver in increasing costs is the increase
in dedicated Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) and
the increase in Salary and Benefits for KCSO
personnel.
MGT recommends KCSO make appropriate
adjustments to Salaries and Benefits, along with
related Costs, to account for vacancies.

Analyses of Exhibit Bs from 2013-2022 of the 12
Contract Cities:

Significant Adopted Cost increases were
highly correlated with increases in FTEs and
Salaries and Benefits for those positions.
Total overhead costs as percentage of Total
adopted costs increased from 12% to 15%.

Discussed more in depth in Section VII of Report:

Section VII Highlights:

POTENTIAL ALTERNATIVES TO COST
ASSUMPTIONS FOR SUSTAINBILITY

Overtime amounts are estimated based on
comparing Actual overtime chargers for one month
annualized and Amounts charged for prior year.
Current Methodology does not provide Credit for
vacancies in Annual Allocation Process.

MGT recommends Credits be included in the
Annual Reconciliation Process for overhead
related to vacancies.

Discussed more in depth in Section VI of Report:

REVIEW CALULATION OF CREDITS FOR
VACANCIES AND OVERTIME
ASSUMPTIONS

MGT REPORT HIGHLIGHTS

35



RECOMMENDATIONS FOR BASES OF
ALLOCATION

Enterprise fund model

Implementation of Contract Cities Enterprise Fund
Utilization of Actual Expenditures vs. Proposed Budget
Determine Invoicing Process (Quarterly, Annually)

MGT Recommendations provide a bases for New Costs Allocation Model, including Bases of Allocation:

Identifies the total direct and indirect costs to provide the service and the sources and amounts of
revenues that support the service for which a fee is charged in exchange for service.
Direct costs generally consist of personnel services, expenses and capital outlay, which are budgeted
and accounted for in the enterprise fund. 
Indirect costs are expenditures budgeted and accounted for in the general fund on behalf of the
enterprise fund, which are allocated to the enterprise fund for funding.

An enterprise fund is a separate accounting and financial reporting mechanism for which revenues and
expenditures are segregated into a fund with financial statements separate from all other governmental
activities. 

36



CONTRACT CITIES AND COST UNIT
STAFF IDEAS FOR NEW PROGRAMS

Body Cameras.
Training of Officers on engagements and anti-bias issues.
Improved Crime reporting at the Contract City level.
Expanded gun buyback program. 

Initiatives Mentioned:

MGT can be available to assist in recommending
Implementation steps once the County Oversight
Committee agrees.

IMPLEMENTATION

37



COST BOOK AND
RECONCILATION ANALYSIS:
CARNATION

2016 decrease in Adopted Costs of 8.7% due to Patrol Services.
2017 increase in Adopted Costs due to Shared Patrol increase of $20K.
Overhead as percentage of Adopted Cost increased from 12% to 15% from
2013-2022.
Reconciliation Credits were between 2.1% to 8.2% of Adopted Cost from
2018-2021.

Summary for Carnation (Shared Supervision Model):

38



THANK YOU
Prepared June 2023 by Kati Fulton
(Municipal Intern)

Please refer Questions to Ashlyn Farnworth 
(Public Information Officer) 
ashlyn.farnworth@carnationwa.gov 

39



COUNCIL 
SESSION #2
8.15.23

40



GENERAL FUND- REVENUES

Actual Actual Estimated Proposed
FUND 2021 2022 BUDGET 2023 BUDGET 2024
001
TAXES $   1,336,921.12 $   1,439,064.00 $   1,403,528.00 $   1,543,630.86 
LICS + PERMITS $    241,333.41 $    229,580.00 $    239,387.00 $    305,202.86 
STATE REVS $    127,614.35 $    455,908.00 $   64,146.00 $   46,513.71 
CHARGES $    152,398.59 $    342,122.00 $    216,629.00 $    605,910.86 
MISC $   14,734.51 $   85,670.00 $   15,943.00 $   81,951.43 

12% UTILITY TAX ON CITY $  -  $  -  $    324,000.00 

$   1,939,633.00 $   2,907,209.71 

41



FEES
• 3% ESCALATOR ACROSS 

THE BOARD
• STILL COST RECOVER 

PHILOSOPHY

• STATE EXPECTED 
REVENUES

• 12% UTILITY TAXES ON 
WATER AND SEWER 
GROSS

42



EXPENSES
FUND Estimated Proposed
001 2021 2022 2023 BUDGET 2024
Legislative $        53,790.00 $      263,417.00 $                       -   $        75,000.00 
Judicial $                       -   $                       -   $        28,000.00 
Executive $        38,709.00 $        98,930.00 $                       -   $      211,000.00 
Administration/IT $      167,909.00 $      153,712.00 $        68,571.43 $      313,000.00 
Legal $        81,579.00 $      137,397.00 $        34,285.71 $        80,000.00 
Other $           2,065.00 $                       -   $                       -   
Central Services $      110,742.00 $        82,670.00 $      334,611.43 $      250,000.00 
General Gov $           2,008.00 $              225.00 $                       -   $                       -   
Public Safety $      546,447.00 $      527,366.00 $      530,000.00 $      600,000.00 
Protective services- inspection $        23,744.00 $        28,000.00 $                       -   $                       -   
Emergency $           9,800.00 $           2,301.00 $                       -   $                       -   
Garbage $        16,651.00 $        16,651.00 $                       -   $                       -   
Child care $           4,614.00 $           3,988.00 $                       -   $                       -   
Community Services $           1,545.00 $        61,873.71 $        80,000.00 
CED $      544,950.00 $      491,397.00 $   1,147,220.57 $      600,000.00 
Child and Youth $        10,000.00 $           7,000.00 $                       -   
Senior $        10,000.00 $           7,000.00 $                       -   
commuity events $        12,604.00 $        18,551.00 $                       -   
Parks Ops $        55,734.00 $        55,070.00 $      216,210.86 $      220,000.00 
Interfunds $      387,000.00 $   1,018,400.00 $      438,000.00 $      438,000.00 

$   2,076,281.00 $   2,915,685.00 $   2,830,773.71 $   2,895,000.00 43



SALARY- FUND 01

EXEC $ 160,028.34 

ADMIN $ 112,374.25 

CED $ 309,780.24 

$ 582,182.83 
44



C A R N A T I O N  C I T Y  C O U N C I L
A G E N D A  B I L L

TITLE:  A RESOLUTION Directing City 
Manager to Execute Purchase and Sale 
Agreement for Lot B, City of Carnation 
Short Subdivision No. SHP17-00003 (4001 
Tolt Ave) 

Agenda Bill No.: AB23-83 
Type of Action: RESOLUTION 
Origin: 
(Council/Manager) 

City Manager 

Agenda Bill Author: City Manager 
EXHIBITS: 
• Purchase Sale Agreement
• Proposed Resolution

Date Submitted: 8/9/2023 
For Agenda of: 8/15/2023 
Expenditure Required: 0 
Amount Budgeted: 0 
Appropriation 
Required: 

0 

SUMMARY STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
The City of Carnation wishes to acquire the Lord’s House which has served as a bed and 
breakfast for at least one year.  The property is strategically located in an area that could 
become a gateway into Carnation for traffic coming North on SR 203.  This purchase 
complements the purchase of King County Parcel No. 8657300145 (the Miracle Lot) .  The 
City is currently negotiating a purchase price the reflects findings from the home 
inspection conducted on August 9, 2023. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  I move to adopt a resolution directing City Manager to 
execute Purchase and Sale Agreement for Lot B, City of Carnation Short Subdivision No. 
SHP17-00003 (4001 Tolt Ave) after negotiations account for building code concerns and 
structural deficiencies per home inspection on August 9, 2023. 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY: 

ACTION TAKEN 
MOTION AS PROPOSED MOTION AS AMENDED 

Motion made by: Motion made by: 
Second by: Second by: 

YES Vote NO Vote YES Vote NO Vote 
Hawkins Hawkins 

Ribail Ribail 
Harris Harris 

Burrell Burrell 
Green Green 

Passed/Failed Passed/Failed 
Ordinance/Resolution No.: Ordinance/Resolution No.: 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



CITY OF CARNATION 
RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CARNATION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A PURCHASE AND SALE 
AGREEMENT FOR LOT B, CITY OF CARNATION SHORT 
SUBDIVISION NO. SHP17-00003 (4001 TOLT AVE) 

WHEREAS, the City Manager entered into negotiations to establish the terms of the 
Purchase and Sale Agreement, which is Attachment A to this resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the City currently has funds in the Local Government Investment Pool 
(LGIP) which the Finance Committee had considered diversifying to other investment options 
such as real estate; and 

WHEREAS, the location of this property provides a strategic gateway opportunity into 
the commercial area; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds execution of these agreements to be in the best 
interest of the City and provides for more than adequate consideration. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Carnation as 
follows: 

Section 1.  Approval of the Purchase and Sale Agreement; Execution.  The City Council 
hereby approves the Purchase and Sale Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as 
Attachment A and incorporated herein by this reference. The City Manager is hereby authorized 
and directed to execute, on behalf of the City, the Purchase and Sale Agreement, in form 
substantially similar to that attached as Attachment A. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Carnation and APPROVED by the City Council this 
______ day of August, 2023. 

City of Carnation 

By________________________________ 
      _______________, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By_____________________________ 
      ______________, Clerk 

68



C A R N A T I O N  C I T Y  C O U N C I L
A G E N D A  B I L L

TITLE:  A MOTION to rescind a motion 
for Agenda Bill 23-58 approving an 
amendment to CMC 15.44.040 Vehicles a 
Temporary Dwelling Units. 

Agenda Bill No.: AB23-83 
Type of Action: Motion 
Origin: 
(Council/Manager) 

City Manager 

Agenda Bill Author: City Manager 
EXHIBITS: Date Submitted: 08/08/2023 

For Agenda of: 0815/2023 
Expenditure Required: 0 
Amount Budgeted: N/A 
Appropriation 
Required: 

N/A 

SUMMARY STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
On May 16th, 2023 the City Council approved a redlined code to amend CMC 15.44.040. 
For clerical matters, staff is requesting to rescind the original motion and bring back the 
amendment to code with an ordinance to submit for codification.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: I move to rescind a motion for Agenda Bill 23-58 approving 
an amendment to CMC 15.44.040. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY: 

ACTION TAKEN 
MOTION AS PROPOSED MOTION AS AMENDED 
Motion made by: Motion made by: 
Second by: Second by: 

YES Vote NO Vote YES Vote NO Vote 
Hawkins Hawkins 

Ribail Ribail 
Harris Harris 

Burrell Burrell 
Green Green 

Passed/Failed Passed/Failed 
Ordinance/Resolution No.: Ordinance/Resolution No.: 

• Previous Red-line
• Proposed Ordinance

69



15.44.040 - Recreational vehicles as temporary dwelling units. 

A. No recreational vehicle shall be occupied for residential or commercial purposes anywhere in
the city of Carnation, except:

1. In the case of temporary uses per Section 15.44.040 (Temporary emergency,
construction, or repair residences); or 

2. Recreational vehicles may be occupied by visitors within residential zones for a period
not to exceed thirty days where a zoning permit has been granted for such use, provided:

a. Temporary occupancy shall not exceed thirty days in a calendar year/visitor,

b. Under no circumstances shall a recreational vehicle be occupied while parked
overnight on a public street, 

c. No recreational vehicle shall be serviced by a temporary or permanent sewer
hook-up emptying into a private septic system or a municipal sewer, and 

d. Nor shall any space be provided for an occupied recreational vehicle for
monetary or other compensation.  

B. An applicant for such temporary use permit shall have seven days to make application to the
city.

70

https://library.municode.com/wa/carnation/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT15LAUS_CH15.44SUUSRE_PTIGEPR_15.44.040REVETEDWUN


C A R N A T I O N  C I T Y  C O U N C I L
A G E N D A  B I L L

TITLE:  An ORDINANCE amending 
Carnation Municipal Code 13.25.030 - 
Disconnection for Condemned Building. 

Agenda Bill No.: AB23-81 
Type of Action: Motion 
Origin: 
(Council/Manager) 

City Manager 

Agenda Bill Author: City Manager 
EXHIBITS: 
• Proposed Ordinance

Date Submitted: 08/01/2023 
For Agenda of: 08/03/2023 
Expenditure Required: 0 
Amount Budgeted: N/A 
Appropriation 
Required: 

N/A 

SUMMARY STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
The City Manager asks the Council to authorize changes to CMC 13.25.030 to reflect that 
both City and County may deem a premises as dangerous or unfit for human habitation, 
prompting City water service to be turned off. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: I move to approve An ORDINANCE amending Carnation 
Municipal Code 13.25.030 - Disconnection for Condemned Building. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY: 

ACTION TAKEN 
MOTION AS PROPOSED MOTION AS AMENDED 
Motion made by: Motion made by: 
Second by: Second by: 

YES Vote NO Vote YES Vote NO Vote 
Hawkins Hawkins 

Ribail Ribail 
Harris Harris 

Burrell Burrell 
Green Green 

Passed/Failed Passed/Failed 
Ordinance/Resolution No.: Ordinance/Resolution No.: 

71



CITY OF CARNATION 
Carnation, Washington 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CARNATION, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING CARNATION MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 15.44.040 
“RECREATION VEHICLES AS TEMPORARY DWELLING UNITS” 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City has adopted supplementary use provisions related to its Land Use 
Code which are set forth in Chapter 15.44 of Carnation Municipal Code; and  

WHEREAS, the current code no longer accurately reflects the current situation regarding 
various types of vehicles used as temporary dwelling units, not just recreational vehicles; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that CMC Section 15.44.040 requires updating to 
reflect the current practice and criteria for service disconnection; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that updating CMC Section 15.44.040 is in 
the best interest of the public;  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARNATION, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.    CMC 15.44.040 entitled “Recreational vehicles as temporary dwelling units” is 
hereby amended by to read as follows: 

15.44.040 – Recreational Vvehicles as temporary dwelling units. 

A. No recreational vehicle shall be occupied for residential or commercial purposes anywhere in
the city of Carnation, except:

1. In the case of temporary uses per Section 15.44.040 (Temporary emergency,
construction, or repair residences); or 

2. Recreational vehicles may be occupied by visitors within residential zones for a period
not to exceed thirty days where a zoning permit has been granted for such use, provided:

a. Temporary occupancy shall not exceed thirty days in a calendar year/visitor,

b. Under no circumstances shall a recreational vehicle be occupied while parked
overnight on a public street,  

c. No recreational vehicle shall be serviced by a temporary or permanent sewer
hook-up emptying into a private septic system or a municipal sewer, and 

d. Nor shall any space be provided for an occupied recreational vehicle for
monetary or other compensation.  

72

https://library.municode.com/wa/carnation/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT15LAUS_CH15.44SUUSRE_PTIGEPR_15.44.040REVETEDWUN


B. An applicant for such temporary use permit shall have seven days to make application to the
city.

Section 2. Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this 
ordinance should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity or unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of 
any other section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this ordinance. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect five days after the date of its 
publication by summary and passage. 

ADOPTED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this ___ day of 
______, 2023. 

CITY OF CARNATION 

By 
Jim Ribail, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By 
Lora Wilmes, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By 
Emily Guildner, City Attorney 

73



DATE:  August 22nd, 2023 
TIME:   6:30 P.M. 

JOIN ONLINE VIA ZOOM: https://bit.ly/3DMTfe9 

Meeting ID:          859 4357 9573 
Passcode:           665313       
Dial by location: (253) 215 - 8782 

For inquiries and/or assistance regarding how to use the City’s online meeting format 
please email clerk@carnationwa.gov, or call (425) 333-4192. 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jim Ribail 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilmember Burrell 
3. ROLL CALL: City Clerk Lora Wilmes 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor and Council  

5. PUBLIC HEARING:
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Carnation City Council will hold a public hearing
to receive and consider public comment regarding a potential Development Agreement
with The Remlinger Group for the Property referred to as King County Pacel No.
1625079073 (The Schefer Property). A copy of the Proposed Developers Agreement
can be found in the Agenda Packet, on our website, or at City Hall. The hearing is open
to the public. All interested persons are encouraged to listen and/or attend the public
hearing and to provide oral and/or written comments. Oral comment will be limited to 3
minutes per person.

6. AGENDA BILLS:
a) AB23-78: Resolution - Accepting Development Agreement and Purchase

Sale Agreement with The Remlinger Group

7. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Jim Ribail

CARNATION CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Special Meeting  

Mayor Jim Ribail, Deputy Mayor Tim Harris, Ryan Burrell, Dustin Green, Adair Hawkins 

74

https://bit.ly/3DMTfe9


DATE:  September 5th, 2023 
TIME:   6:00 P.M. 

JOIN ONLINE VIA ZOOM:  http://bit.ly/3BbmBBu 

Meeting ID:  983 3856 5355 
Passcode:    970731 
Dial by location:  (253) 215 - 8782 

For inquiries and/or assistance regarding how to use the City’s online meeting format 
please email clerk@carnationwa.gov, or call (425) 333-4192. 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jim Ribail 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jim Ribail 
3. ROLL CALL: City Clerk Lora Wilmes 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor and Council  
5. EXECUTIVE SESSION:

6. CONSENT AGENDA:
a) Approval of Minutes for the following date(s):

i. Regular Session: August 15th, 2023
b) Approval of Claims in the following amount(s):

i. $

7. PROCLAMATION: National Senior Center Month

8. COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS

9. STAFF REPORTS:
a) Community Economic Development Department Report - CED Principal

Rhonda Ender

CARNATION CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting  

Mayor Jim Ribail, Deputy Mayor Tim Harris, Ryan Burrell, Dustin Green, Adair Hawkins 

75

http://bit.ly/3BbmBBu


b) Capital Improvement Projects / Administrative Services Department Report -
Administrative Services Manager Lora Wilmes

c) City Manager’s Office Report - City Manager Ana Cortez

10. PUBLIC COMMENT & REQUESTS: Public comment on meeting items or
other issues of note or concern. Comments may be submitted in advance by
writing or e-mailing clerk@carnationwa.gov, or made in person, or by telephone
or computer connection at the time of the meeting. Individual comments shall
be limited to three minutes. Group comments shall be limited to five minutes.

11. PRESENTATIONS:

12. AGENDA BILLS:
a) AB23-XX

13. DISCUSSION ITEMS:

14. FUTURE AGENDAS:
a) Tentative agenda for the meeting of September 19th, 2023
b) Tentative agenda for the meeting of October 3rd, 2023

15. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Jim Ribail

76

mailto:clerk@carnationwa.gov


DATE:  September 19th, 2023 
TIME:   6:00 P.M. 

JOIN ONLINE VIA ZOOM:  https://bit.ly/3xlFY9B 

Meeting ID:  976 1525 3648  
Passcode:  894903  
Dial by Location:  (253) 215 - 8782 

For inquiries and/or assistance regarding how to use the City’s online meeting format 
please email clerk@carnationwa.gov, or call (425) 333-4192. 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jim Ribail 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilmember Ryan Burrell 
3. ROLL CALL: City Clerk Lora Wilmes 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor and Council  
5. EXECUTIVE SESSION:

6. CONSENT AGENDA:
a) Approval of Minutes for the following date(s):

i. Regular Session: September 5th, 2023
b) Approval of Claims in the following amount(s):

i. $
c) Approval of Payroll for the following pay period(s):

i. August 1st, 2023 – August 31st, 2023

7. COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS

8. STAFF REPORTS:
a) Community Economic Development Department Report - CED Principal

Rhonda Ender

CARNATION CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting  

Mayor Jim Ribail, Deputy Mayor Tim Harris, Ryan Burrell, Dustin Green, Adair Hawkins 

77

https://bit.ly/3xlFY9B


b) Capital Improvement Projects / Administrative Services Department Report - 
Administrative Services Manager Lora Wilmes 

c) City Manager’s Office Report - City Manager Ana Cortez 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT & REQUESTS: Public comment on meeting items or 
other issues of note or concern. Comments may be submitted in advance by 
writing or e-mailing clerk@carnationwa.gov, or made in person, or by telephone 
or computer connection at the time of the meeting. Individual comments shall 
be limited to three minutes. Group comments shall be limited to five minutes. 
 

10.  PRESENTATIONS: 

 
11.  AGENDA BILLS:  

a) AB23-XX 
 

12.  DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 

13.  FUTURE AGENDAS:  
a) Tentative agenda for the meeting of October 3rd, 2023 
b) Tentative agenda for the meeting of October 17th, 2023 

 
14.  ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Jim Ribail  

 
 
 
 

78

mailto:clerk@carnationwa.gov

	AG 08-22-23
	MIN 08-03-23 SM
	MIN 08-03-23 SM
	MIN 08-03-23 - Public Comment

	AP Paid 8.15
	AP 8.15
	PR 08-07-23 CERT
	PR 08-07-23 Check Register
	memto to council re goals
	Kati Cost Model Review KCSO presentation
	BUDGET PRESENTATION GENERAL FUND
	COUNCIL SESSION #2
	GENERAL FUND- REVENUES
	FEES
	EXPENSES
	SALARY- FUND 01

	2023 2024 goals status table
	Sheet1

	AB23-82 Lords House
	AGENDA BILL
	RESOLUTION

	AB23-82 Att. PSA Lord's House
	AB23-82  Reso
	AB23-83 Recind a Motion
	AGENDA BILL
	Motion

	AB23-83 Att Red Line
	AB23-84 Ord Vehicle as Dwelling Units
	AGENDA BILL
	Motion

	AB23-84 Att. Ord
	AG 08-15-23
	AG 09-05-23
	AG 09-19-23



